




























































54. Please list the number of HPTF closings in FY 24 and FY 25, to date, including the project

name, location of the project (address and ward), start date, closing date, amount of HPTF

funding used in each project, the developer(s) on the project, and in what funding round the

project was selected (ex. 2021 Consolidated RFP).

***See Attached For Response*** 

55. On August 23, 2024, DHCD released a Consolidated RFP for Affordable Housing

Projects. DHCD's web page for this RFP suggests that the process is still open.

a. What is the status of this process?

There were 86 applications submitted (Category A-69, Category B -3 Category C-

14). All applicants in Categories A & B have received selection letters and are 

going through underwriting. The category C applicants are in the process of being 

evaluated. 

b. How many applications has DHCD received?

86 

c. If DHCD has made selections, please provide the names of the Selected

Developer(s), broken down by Categories A, B, and C as defined in the RFP.

Category A: 69 

Category B: 3 

Category C: selections pending 

***See Attached For Response*** 



56. Other than those listed in response to question 53, how many applications for HPTF
money were received in FY 24 and FY25, to date? Please specify:

Applications referenced in this response were submitted to DHCD under the Fall 2024
Request for Proposals, which had different categories based on the type of financing
request.

a. The number of production applications:

There were no true production applications for HPTF funds submitted in this funding 
round, although there were 3 Category B applications (financial carrying cost assistance) 
that will receive HPTF funds under this funding round and once they reach financial 
closing on their full capital stack, these three projects will produce new affordable rental 
housing units. 

b. The number of preservation applications:

There are 69 Category A applications (financial assistance for loan conversion/rent 
arrearages due to economic vacancy/bad debt expense)  

c. Number of selected applications per planning area:
Rock Creek East – 16
Rock Creek West - 0
Upper Northeast - 5
Mid-City - 5
Near Northeast - 0
Far Northeast and Southeast - 17
Central Washington – 4
Capitol Hill - 0
Far Southeast and Southwest - 23
Lower Anacostia Waterfront - 2

d. The number of applications that dropped out per planning area:

none



57. In FY 24 and FY 25, to date, what were the total amount and percentage of HPTF funding

spent on housing for people in specific income ranges (broken down by income level) and on

housing units without income restrictions?

***See Attached for Rsponse*** Also, note that HPTF does not fund units without income 
restrictions. 

58. Of the units supported by HPTF, how many were:

As long as the given person/households is income-qualified, each category of resident listed above 
can access HPTF-funded affordable housing units, subject to availability. In certain cases, the are 
affordable housing developments funded by HPTF that specifically serve the aforementioned 
population and in all HPTF-funded developments, there are units set aside for disabled residents. 

a. Accessible to tenants with disabilities

b. Accessible to seniors

c. Accessible to veterans

d. Accessible to LGBTQIA+ people

e. Accessible to returning citizens

59. On January 3, 2024, DHCD released an RFP for the Potential Assignment of DOPA

Rights at 801-811 R Street NW.

a. Please outline the process DHCD used to evaluate and determine the acceptance or

denial of these offers.

DHCD solicited proposals through our RFP process and convened a technical evaluation

panel of qualified reviewers to evaluate submissions and make a recommendation. The

agency received one response, which was assessed based on the following criteria:
• Capacity to plan, finance, and develop projects of similar scale and complexity.
• Experience developing in Washington, DC.
• Capacity to successfully manage properties of similar scale and complexity, including

relocation and/or resident services if applicable.
• Ability to collaborate with existing residents in design, development, and

management.
• Proposed approach to resident engagement in design, development, and management

(automatic full points awarded if selected for TOPA).
• Amount of closing assistance requested (up to $25,000).

After a thorough review, the agency determined that the respondent was not currently

qualified to successfully acquire the property using the District's DOPA right to

purchase.

b. Please provide a list of proposals received with details about each, including at

minimum who submitted it, the total units in the property, the ward of the property,

whether the property was subject to DC's rent stabilization program, and whether it

was accepted or denied.

















































units at the same developments take to occupy. Another factor to consider is that property 
managers frequently prioritize filling market-rate units over IZ units, since the revenue is 
much higher. 

b. What steps is DHCD taking to reduce the time it takes to fill IZ units?

Since the audit, DHCD has implemented and continues to pilot several process 
modifications to reduce the time it takes to fill IZ units. One example is to follow-up with 
properties via phone about the NOA (Notice of Availability), to avoid tedious and 
inefficient email exchanges and obtain the necessary information to open lotteries faster. 
Another example is eliminating unnecessary and time-consuming site visits to move 
lotteries faster. Also, instead of waiting for perfect dchousingsearch.org listings from 
properties, specialists can announce and run lotteries if the most critical details on the 
property listings are accurate, to speed the unit filling process. In larger properties (20+ 
IZ units), instead of splitting the units into two separate time-consuming lottery batches, 
staff are piloting lotteries for all IZ units in the building at one time, but with a smaller 
number of selectees per unit. If the first lottery leaves unfilled units, DHCD is 
experimenting with ranking the remaining lottery selectees in a DHCD-administered 
waitlist to help the property fill remaining units faster (many backup selectees already 
have their documents submitted, which saves time in the income certification process). 

102. ODCA 's IZ Report indicates that "DHCD did not enforce the annual reporting
requirements, which meant they were not able to track which units were vacant or who was
living in occupied units".

a. Please describe, step by step, the annual reporting enforcement process that DHCD
is supposed to follow.

The IZ regulations place the responsibility of annual reporting on rental properties and IZ 
unit owners, however DHCD does request reports at least once a year from all property 
management companies, rental property owners and/or IZ unit owners. Individual 
specialists contact properties to request annual reports, and mass emails are sent to 
properties quarterly with reminders and instructions of the annual reporting 
requirements. 

b. Why has DHCD not enforced the annual reporting requirements? Are there
specific resource, policy, or compliance issues contributing to this lapse?

The IZ program has always enforced annual reporting requirements and has significantly 
improved in enforcing the process of annual reporting requirements for properties since 
the data from the ODCA IZ report, and most IZ properties currently meet the compliance 
requirement of having an annual report on file that has been submitted within the past 
365 days. 

c. Are additional FTEs or other resources needed to adequately enforce IZ reporting
requirements? lfso, what is the estimated need?
































